
Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

Wednesday, May 27, 2020 
Closed Session - 6:30 PM 

Regular Session - 7:00 PM 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely 
telephonically or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Orders issued by the San 

Mateo County Health Officer on March 16, 2020 and March 31,2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order 
issued by the Governor in Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing 
guidelines which discourage large public gatherings, the Council Chamber will not be open to the public 

for this Town of Colma City Council Meeting. The purpose of these orders was to provide the safest 
environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing for public participation. 

Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer,  
the Zoom Meeting listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87657363236 
Password: 785840 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,87657363236#,,1#,785840# US (San Jose) 
+12532158782,,87657363236#,,1#,785840# US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 876 5736 3236 
Password: 785840 

Dial by your location 
 +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
 +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
 +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
 +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

Meeting ID: 876 5736 3236 
Password: 785840 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdxlIWVUQ 

Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting . Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you 
are commenting, or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of 
the emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87657363236
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdxlIWVUQ
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


Page 2 of 3 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:30PM 
1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor 

Negotiators. 
 

Agency Negotiator:   Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees:  All 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00PM 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
PRESENTATION 
 Proclamation in honor of Public Works Week 
 Recognition of Colma Volunteers 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the May 13, 2020 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 4.09 to Comply with 

State Law Regarding Work Permit and Minimum Age Requirements for Gambling Establishments. 
4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Amendment to the Agreement Between the County of 

San Mateo and the Cities in the County for Facilitation and Coordination of Animal Control Services. 
5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Application for, and Receipt of, Local Government 

Planning Support Grant Program Funds. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
6. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT ORDINANCE 

Consider: Motion to Introduce and Waive a Further Reading of an Ordinance Amending Various 
Provisions in Chapter 5 and Repealing and Replacing Subchapter 5.19 of the Colma Municipal Code 
Relating to Accessory and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units and Determining the Ordinance to be 
Exempt from CEQA. 

NEW BUSINESS 
7. FINANCIAL PROJECTION BALANCING STRATEGY  

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Use of Unassigned Reserve and Reducing 
the OPEB and Pension Trust Contributions in FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21. 

REPORTS 
Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website 
www.colma.ca.gogov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

http://www.colma.ca.gogov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All 

This is a Closed Session item; there is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.13.20 Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 

Wednesday, May 13, 2020 
6:00 PM – Closed Session 

7:00 PM – Regular Session 
CLOSED SESSION 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor
Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor John Irish Goodwin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another completely remote Council Meeting—all Council 
Members, staff and members of the public are attending this meeting from separate 
locations. A few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through 
email—please email ccorley@colma.ca.gov to submit a public comment. You can also use 
the chat function to chat directly to our city clerk and she will be able to let us know that 
you would like to make a comment when your item comes up in the agenda. Also, please 
note that the city clerk has control over everyone’s video and audio, so if you would like to 
use your video or audio, you will need to chat with her directly to request it. We are new to 
conducting meetings remotely, so please bear with us through any technical difficulties. We 
are all still learning how to best make this work. Thank you.”  
Council Present – Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Vice Mayor Diana Colvin, Council Members 
Helen Fisicaro, Raquel Gonzalez and Joanne F. del Rosario were all present. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
Kirk Stratton, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Engineer Cyrus Kianpour, Associate Engineer Abdulkader Hashem, City 
Planner Michael Laughlin, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

The Mayor stated, “No action was taken at tonight’s closed session.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Goodwin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. He 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Item #2

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.13.20   Page 2 of 5 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

PRESENTATION 

• The Mayor recognized longtime resident Alice Letcavage’s 100th Birthday. A slideshow of 
photos of Alice at Town events was shown, as well as a video of the socially distant 
birthday celebration by her family, friends and neighbors, with a parade by Colma Police, 
Colma Fire and the Recreation Department. Alice’s family joined the zoom call to thank the 
Town for helping Alice celebrate. Happy birthday, Alice! 

• Cynthia Nakayama gave a presentation on CAFE’s Age Friendly San Mateo Cities and 
County. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period at 7:12 p.m. and seeing no one request 
to speak, he closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the April 22, 2020 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for April 2020.  

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2 
through 3; the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

 

  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.13.20   Page 3 of 5 

PUBLIC HEARING 

4. COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT SUBCHAPTER 4.09 – NEW 
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA GAMBLING CONTROL ACT 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public 
comment period at 7:33 p.m. and seeing no one request to speak, he closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Introduce and Waive a Further Reading of an 
Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 4.09 to Comply with State Law 
Regarding Work Permit and Minimum Age Requirements for Gambling Establishments; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

5. CALIFORNIA CITIES GAMING AUTHORITY 

City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public 
comment period at 7:45 p.m. Dustin Chase, General Manager of Lucky Chances made a 
comment in support of the Town joining the CCGA. The Mayor closed the public comment 
period at 7:47 p.m. Council discussion followed. 
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Amendment 
to the California Cities Gaming Authority Admitting the Town of Colma to the California 
Cities Gaming Authority; the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and 
carried by the following vote: 
 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.13.20   Page 4 of 5 

Action: Mayor Goodwin made a motion nominating Council Member Fisicaro as the Town’s 
delegate and Council Member Raquel Gonzalez as the alternate for the CCGA; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 
 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

6. FY 2020-21 WATER CONSERVATION INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

Director of Public Works Brad Donohue presented the staff report. Mayor Goodwin opened 
the public comment period at 8:21 p.m. and seeing no one request to speak, he closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed. Council expressed a desire to 
temporarily suspend the Program due to the Town’s need to save costs during these difficult 
economic times.  
 
Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to direct staff to bring the item back with the 
option to temporarily suspect the program; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Colvin 
and carried by the following vote: 
 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

7. PROJECTION FOR FY 2019-20 AND FY 2020-21 

City Manager Brian Dossey and Administrative Services Director Pak Lin presented the staff 
report. Mayor Goodwin opened the public comment period at 9:18 p.m. and seeing no one 
request to speak, he closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed.  
This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, May 27, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. and it will be 
conducted remotely.  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.13.20   Page 5 of 5 

REPORTS 

 City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 
 The Recreation Department along with the Public Works Team is delivering 

groceries to over 120 households.  
 The Census is still ongoing; we have lawn signs promoting it available if anyone 

would like one.  
 Two Colma businesses have been approved for funding through SMC Strong.  
 The County is moving into Phase II of the reopening process, bringing it in line with 

the State. The primary change is that curbside pickup is now available for most 
retail businesses.  

 There is a new testing facility in Daly City. No doctor’s note or symptoms are 
necessary, though you must have an appointment.  

 National Night Out has been postponed to October.  

ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Goodwin adjourned the meeting at 10:20 p.m.  

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



25977.00100\32659779.4 
Ord. No. ____ - CMC Subchapter 4.09 Amendment- Gambling Control Act (Introduced 05.13.20) Page 1 of 5 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 4.09 TO 
COMPLY WITH STATE LAW REGARDING WORK PERMIT AND MINIMUM AGE 

REQUIREMENTS FOR GAMBLING ESTABLISHMENTS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) The California Gambling Control Act (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 19800 et seq., hereinafter the 
“Act”) establishes, amongst other things, work permit and minimum age requirements 
applicable to gambling establishments; 

(b) Effective January 1, 2020, Assembly Bill 649 (“AB 649”) amended the Act (specifically, 
Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 19859, 19911, 19912, 19914, 19921, and 19941) regarding work permits 
and minimum age requirements; 

(c) Before the effectiveness of AB 649, the Act generally required that gambling 
establishment employees be at least 21 years of age and obtain a work permit; 

(d) After the effectiveness of AB 649, along with other related changes, the Act will allow 
persons ages 18 through 20 to be employed in limited positions and without a work permit in 
gambling establishments and allow persons ages 21 and older to begin work in limited positions 
pending approval of a work permit; 

(e) Colma Municipal Code subchapter 4.09 regulates gambling establishments in the Town; 

(f) The City Council wishes to update the Municipal Code to comply with the Act as 
amended by AB 649; and 

(g) All other legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Ordinance have occurred. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report presented 
herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings of the City 
Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. AMENDMENTS TO CMC SUBCHAPTER 4.09 

Subchapter 4.09 of the Colma Municipal Code is amended by adding new section 4.09.145, 
amending existing paragraph 4.09.180(a)(7), and amending existing section 4.09.230 to read 
as follows:    

Item #3



25977.00100\32659779.4 
 

Ord. No. ____ - CMC Subchapter 4.09 Amendment- Gambling Control Act (Introduced 05.13.20)  Page 2 of 5 
 

4.09.145 Employee Work Permits/Registration. 
 
(a) A person who desires to be employed by a gambling establishment must 

be at least twenty-one (21) years of age and shall obtain a valid 
employee work permit/registration as required by this Chapter, except as 
provided in paragraph (b) of this section. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a): 
 

(1) A person who is twenty-one (21) years of age or older may begin 
working on a temporary basis without a work permit as an 
employee if: 

 
(A) The person applied for a work permit/registration as 

required by this Chapter; 
 
(B) The person holds a position that is not supervisory, is not 

related to the operation or administration of gambling, and 
does not perform employment duties in the area where 
gambling is conducted; and 

 
(C) The person wears a temporary badge on their outermost 

garment at chest level with their name, picture, and the 
words, “Non-Gaming Employee, Work Permit Pending.” 

 
(D) After the person has received a work permit/registration, 

the person may perform any duties for which a work 
permit is required. If the person is denied a work 
permit/registration, the person shall not work as an 
employee in any gaming or nongaming job. 

 
(2) A person who is eighteen (18) through twenty (20) years of age 

may be employed without a work permit/registration as an 
employee in job classifications that entail providing services 
exclusively off the gaming floor and that are not involved in the 
play of a controlled game if: 

 
(A) The person holds a position that is not supervisory and not 

related to the operation or administration of gambling;  
 
(B) The person is not allowed to perform any duties of an 

employee on the floor of the gambling establishment or in 
areas that are identified as restricted access areas to 
employees, including, but not limited to, the cage, count 
room, surveillance room, security office, vault, and card 
storage; and 

 



25977.00100\32659779.4 
 

Ord. No. ____ - CMC Subchapter 4.09 Amendment- Gambling Control Act (Introduced 05.13.20)  Page 3 of 5 
 

(C) The person wears a badge on their outermost garment at 
chest level that has with the words “Non-Gaming 
Employee: Under 21” and that has a different background 
color than the badges worn by other employees. 

 
4.09.180 Grounds for Denial, Revocation or Suspension of 

Registration.  
 
(a) The Chief of Police may revoke or suspend the registration of or deny 

registration to any applicant who is disqualified for any of the following 
reasons: 

 
… 
 

(7) The applicant is less than twenty-one (21) years of age, except as 
provided in subparagraph 4.09.145(b)(2).  

 
4.09.230 Permitting Minors on Premises Prohibited. 

 
(a) No gambling establishment permittee, owner, or employee shall 

knowingly permit or allow any person under the age of twenty-one (21) 
years of age at any time to be in or upon the gambling establishment 
premises; provided, however, that persons under twenty-one (21) years 
of age may be allowed in the following areas: 

 
(1) An area separated from any gambling area used for a nongaming 

purpose, including for maintenance, parking, or business offices, 
or for the purpose of dining or food or beverage service or 
preparation. For purposes of this section, any place wherein food 
or beverages are dispensed primarily by vending machines shall 
not constitute a place for dining; 

 
(2) Restrooms; 
 
(3) A supervised room that is physically separated from any gambling 

area and used exclusively for the purpose of entertainment or 
recreation; and 

 
(4) Those areas authorized in connection with employment in 

accordance with subparagraph 4.09.145(b)(2). 
 

(b) A person who is under twenty-one (21) years of age and not employed 
per subparagraph 4.09.145(b)(2) may enter upon or pass through a 
gambling area on a designated pathway to reach any of the areas 
described in paragraph (a)(1) to (3) only if accompanied by a person or 
employee who is twenty-one (21) years of age or older. 

 
 



25977.00100\32659779.4 
 

Ord. No. ____ - CMC Subchapter 4.09 Amendment- Gambling Control Act (Introduced 05.13.20)  Page 4 of 5 
 

 
ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY. 
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 
entity, person or circumstance is held for any reason to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance 
which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby 
declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each section, sentence, clause or 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 
ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 
 
This Ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 15378 of the State of California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, because it has no potential for resulting in 
physical change in the environment, directly or indirectly.  The City Council further finds, under 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 15061(b)(3), that this Ordinance is 
nonetheless exempt from the requirements of CEQA in that the activity is covered by the 
general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.   
 
 
ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
This Ordinance shall be posted on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma 
and within fifteen (15) days of its passage and is to take effect thirty (30) days after its 
passage. 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 



25977.00100\32659779.4 
 

Ord. No. ____ - CMC Subchapter 4.09 Amendment- Gambling Control Act (Introduced 05.13.20)  Page 5 of 5 
 

Certificate of Adoption 
 
I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ____ was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on May 13, 2020, and duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on ________________ by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Helen Fisicaro      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 
 
Dated ___________________________ _________________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
     Attest: ________________________________________ 
      Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



25977.00100\32964435.1 
Staff Report Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement  Page 1 of 4 
 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND THE CITIES IN THE COUNTY FOR FACILITATION AND 
COORDINATION OF ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed amendment to the existing agreement entered into in June of 2015 for animal 
care and control services between the Town, the County of San Mateo, and the cities of 
Atherton, Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Half Moon Bay, 
Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Millbrae, Pacifica, Portola Valley, Redwood City, San Bruno, San 
Carlos, San Mateo, South San Francisco, and Woodside would make the following changes: 

• Extend the term for one year.

• Increase the amounts owed by the County to the Peninsula Humane Society and the
cities to the County for this one year extension.

• Update the proportionate share of the cost for each respective city in the County with
the Town’s share changing from 0.53% to 0.52% for fiscal year 2020-2021.

• Amend the existing agreement between the County of San Mateo and the Peninsula
Humane Society to acknowledge the new shelter has been constructed and the new
arrangement between the parties in regards to the new shelter. The agreement between
the County and the Peninsula Humane Society also includes other changes regarding
quarantining an animal and other costs.

• Updates other miscellaneous provisions in the existing agreement between the County
and cities.

Item #4



25977.00100\32964435.1 
 

Staff Report Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement  Page 2 of 4 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Under the terms of the agreement, the Town would continue to be liable for its proportionate 
share of the costs of the services. For fiscal year 2020-2021 the Town’s proportionate share is 
0.52% with the County and other cities making up the remaining 99.48% of the costs.  

The Town will also need to begin paying, pursuant to the “Memorandum of Agreement” 
between the County and the cities entered into in 2014, the proportionate share of costs 
associated with the construction of the new shelter. 

BACKGROUND 

In June of 2015, the Town entered into an agreement for animal care and control services 
between the Town, the County of San Mateo, and the cities of Atherton, Belmont, Brisbane, 
Burlingame, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Half Moon Bay, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, 
Millbrae, Pacifica, Portola Valley, Redwood City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San Mateo, South San 
Francisco, and Woodside. At the time, with the Town’s previous agreement with the County 
expiring, the new agreement in 2015 allowed the Town to continue to contract with the County 
to continue its long running practice of facilitating animal care and control services. It also 
allowed the County to continue to contract with the Peninsula Humane Society/SPCA for animal 
control and sheltering services to be provided in the Town and the County. At that time, the 
new animal shelter was still under construction so the arrangement between the County and 
the Peninsula Humane Society/SPCA acknowledged the pending construction. 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

The City Council’s approval of the amendment to the existing agreement is not an activity that 
has the potential to cause a significant impact on the environment.  The action is therefore 
covered by the common sense exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guideline 15061(b)(3) where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the Council’s action to approve an amendment to extend the term for one year and provide 
additional funding would have a significant effect on the environment.  The Council’s action is 
therefore exempt under CEQA. 

ANALYSIS 

As noted above, the proposed amendment would make various changes to the existing 
agreement between the County and the cities for animal control services, but it would also 
amend the existing agreement between the County and the Peninsula Humane Society/SPCA 
with regard to the services provided.  All of the changes are detailed below: 

• Term: the amendment extends the term of the existing agreement between the County 
and the cities for animal control services by one year through June 30, 2021.  The 
original agreement expires on June 30, 2020. 

• Proportionate Cost: the amendment updates the proportionate cost due from each 
city for the fiscal year 2020-2021.  The Town’s proportionate cost is actually decreasing 
from 0.53% to 0.52%. 



25977.00100\32964435.1 
 

Staff Report Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement  Page 3 of 4 
 

• Agreement between County and Peninsula Humane Society: the amendment 
also modifies the existing agreement between the County and the Peninsula Humane 
Society to also extend their arrangement by one year with added costs to be paid.  
Further, the agreement between the County and the Peninsula Humane Society is 
further amended to acknowledge that the new shelter has been constructed and there is 
no longer a lease arrangement between the parties.  Finally, other miscellaneous 
provisions are modified including notice sections, payments and rates, and the 
quarantining process for an animal.  

• Memorandum Regarding Shelter Construction: The amendment also add in a 
County memo dated September 9, 2014 into the agreement.  This memo details the 
“Memorandum of Agreement” entered into by the County and cities in the County to 
detail the costs associated with the new shelter and the County’s upfront payment of 
costs with constructing the new shelter.  Under the Memorandum of Agreement entered 
into with the County, each city must begin paying its proportionate costs associated with 
the construction of the shelter once the new shelter is open and continuing for 29 years.  
This amount now appears due and the Town will have to pay its proportionate cost for 
the next 29 years. 

• Amendment to Section 4.1: This section is amended to acknowledge the additional 
cost for fiscal year 2020-2021 to be paid from the County to the Peninsula Humane 
Society.  It also acknowledges the increased costs for licenses and tags. 

• Amendment to Section 4.2: This section is amended to acknowledge the additional 
cost for fiscal year 2020-2021 to be paid by the cities to the County.  For fiscal year 
2020-2021, the cities will pay the County based on actual costs and based on each city’s 
proportionate share of the costs.  Per the amendment, estimates for these costs were 
sent to each city in March. 

• Amendment to Section 5.3: This section is amended to acknowledge that the shelter 
is constructed and that under the “Memorandum of Agreement” noted above, each city 
will need to begin paying its proportionate share associated with the construction of the 
new shelter for the next 29 years. 

• Amendment to Section 5.8: This section is amended to acknowledge the extended 
term through June 30, 2021. 

• Amendment to Section 5.15: This section is amended to modify the notice provision 
and who should receive notice at the County. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council’s action in adopting the resolution and approving the amendment is visionary 
as it will ensure that animal care and control services are provided as they have historically 
been provided in the Town. Further, the City Council’s adoption of the resolution is responsible 
as it ensures the Town is meeting its previous legal obligations with regard to construction of 
the shelter. 
 



25977.00100\32964435.1 
 

Staff Report Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement  Page 4 of 4 
 

Alternatives 

The City Council could not approve the amendment or seek changes to the amendment.  Doing 
so is not recommended, however, as the agreement has been worked on by numerous parties 
in the County and making changes might delay the ultimate approval for all the cities involved.   

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should adopt the resolution approving the amendment. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Amended Agreement 
C. Original Agreement 

 
 



25977.00100\32964645.1 
Res. 2020-__ Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND THE CITIES IN THE 
COUNTY FOR FACILITATION AND COORDINATION OF ANIMAL 

CONTROL SERVICES  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town has historically contracted with the County of San Mateo for the County to 
facilitate animal care and control.  

(b) In 2015, San Mateo County and the Town of Colma entered into a new agreement for 
the County to provide animal control services to the Town through the Peninsula Humane 
Society and SPCA.  

(c) The current agreement is set to expire on June 30, 2020. 

(d) In anticipation of the current agreement expiring, the Town and the County, in 
conjunction with other cities in the County, seek to enter into an amendment to extend the 
agreement for animal care and control and make other clarifying changes. 

(e) The agreement amendment is not subject to competitive bidding under the Town’s 
Purchasing Ordinance and the Town can enter into the amendment with the County directly as 
a contract for services provided by a government agency under Municipal Code Section 
1.06.180(c). 

2. Order.

(a) The agreement amendment between the Town of Colma, the County of San Mateo, and 
other cities in the County, and which is on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved by the 
City Council of the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor is authorized to execute the agreement amendment on behalf of the Town of 
Colma, with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager 
and the City Attorney. 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

Attachment A



25977.00100\32964645.1 
 

Res. 2020-__ Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. ____ was adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on May 27, 2020 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Helen Fisicaro      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 
 
Dated              

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________ 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 

 



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND 
THE CITIES OF ATHERTON, BELMONT, BRISBANE, BURLINGAME, COLMA, 

DALY CITY, EAST PALO ALTO, FOSTER CITY, HALF MOON BAY, 
HILLSBOROUGH, MENLO PARK, MILLBRAE, PACIFICA, PORTOLA VALLEY, 

REDWOOD CITY, SAN BRUNO, SAN CARLOS, SAN MATEO, SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO, AND WOODSIDE FOR FACILITATION AND COORDINATION OF 

ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

THIS AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT is entered into this first day of July, 2020, by and 
between the County of San Mateo, hereinafter called "County," and Atherton, Belmont, 
Brisbane, Burlingame, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Half Moon Bay, 
Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Millbrae, Pacifica, Portola Valley, Redwood City, San Bruno, San 
Carlos, San Mateo, South San Francisco, and Woodside, each hereinafter individually called a 
“City” and collectively called the “Cities,” and, together with the County, the “Parties”; 

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into an Agreement for Facilitation and 
Coordination of Animal Control Services on or about July 1, 2015 (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, such agreements are authorized by Section 51300, et seq. of the California 
Government Code;   

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreement to extend the term by one year, 
to June 30, 2021, and to make certain other amendments to the Agreement as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. The original Exhibit B (Proportionate Share of the Cost) in the Agreement is replaced in
its entirety with a new Exhibit B (rev. July 1, 2020), attached hereto and incorporated by
this reference.

2. A new Attachment 2 (Amendment to Agreement Between the County of San Mateo and
Peninsula Humane Society, SPCA) is hereby added to the Agreement, and attached and
incorporated by this reference.

3. A new Attachment 3 (Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Funding for Construction
of Animal Control Shelter entered into by the Parties and dated September 9, 2014), is
hereby added to the Agreement, and attached and incorporated by this reference.

Attachment B



4. Section 4.1 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety by a new section 4.1, to read 
as follows:  

“4.1 a. The County will pay Animal Control Contractor the following agreed-to amounts. 
These costs are to be reimbursed by the Cities as provided in Section 3.8 above.  

Fiscal Year Amount 

2015-16 $5,944,135 

2016-17 $6,122,459 

2017-18 $6,275,521 

2018-19 $6,463,786 

2019-20 $6,625,381 

2020-21 $6,625,381 

b. The County will pay Animal Licensing Contractor the following agreed-to amounts. 
These costs are to be reimbursed by the Cities as provided in Section 3.8 above.  

Contract Amount Current Contract  
 2013-2016 2019-2022 

One-year license $3.80 per license $4.28 per license 

Multi-year license $3.80 for the first 
year and $2 for each 
additional year 

$4.28 for the first year 
and $2 for each 
additional year 

Late fees collected $2.50 collection 
service fee for each 
license 

$2.50 collection service 
fee for each license 

Replacement tags $3.80 per tag $4.28 per tag 

Bank and supply 
fees 

Actual cost Actual cost 

 

5. Section 4.2 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety with a new Section 4.2 
which shall read as follows:  

4.2 The County shall provide the services as outlined in this Agreement for the following 
estimated amounts.  Parties will only be invoiced for the actual costs to provide said 



services as outlined in this Agreement and are to be reimbursed by the Cities as provided 
in Section 3.8 above.  

Fiscal Year Amount 

2015-16 $420,000 

2016-17 $433,000 

2017-18 $442,000 

2018-19 $455,000 

2019-20 $466,000 

For FY 2020-21, the Cities will be billed for and pay actual costs based on each City’s 
proportionate share of costs.  In November 2020, the actual cost will be determined using 
the estimates provided to the Cities in March, and based on the contracted methodology 
set forth in section 3.8 of the Agreement, in which each City’s annual contract costs are 
based on that City’s 3-year rolling average of usage (shelter and field services) and offset 
by that City’s share of the licensing revenue for the last calendar year. The licensing 
revenue is divided on a percentage basis determined by the number of licenses sold in 
each City. 
 
6.  Section 5.3 of the Agreement is hereby amended by the addition of a subsection c. 
which shall read as follows: 
 
“c.  The Parties acknowledge that the new  Shelter has been constructed and PHS is 
occupying it in order to provide animal control  services as set forth in Attachments 1 and 
2.     Further, the Parties have previously entered into a Memorandum of Agreement 
regarding Funding of Construction of an Animal Care Shelter, dated September 9, 2014 
(“Memorandum”), attached and incorporated as Attachment 3.   The Parties agree that the 
total cost of the shelter construction project is being updated as provided by Section 2 of 
the Memorandum, and the Parties agree that, when available, County will provide to 
Cities the final total cost of the Shelter construction which will be paid proportionately by 
each City as provided by the Memorandum.  Further, the Parties acknowledge and agree 
that the proportionate share of each City will be amended as provided by section 3 of the 
Memorandum. The Parties acknowledge that continued animal control and shelter 
services to a City as provided herein is contingent on that City approving any amended 
cost and proportionate share, as previously agreed in the Memorandum.”        
 
7.  Section 5.8 of the Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety with a new Section 
5.8, to read as follows:  
 
“Term and Termination.  Subject to compliance with all terms and conditions, the term of 
this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2021. 
 



Except as otherwise provided by this section, this Agreement may not be terminated by 
any party during the effective period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2021.  Each City 
is responsible for its annual percentage share under this Agreement for the entire term of 
this Agreement. 
 
In the event any City fails to pay its percentage share as set forth in this Agreement and 
Exhibit B, every other City shall promptly pay its Proportionate Share of Cost of the non-
payment, unless and until the County is able to recover the non-payment from the late or 
non-paying City. 
 
This Agreement shall automatically terminate in the event of termination of the Animal 
Control Services Agreement.  Upon termination, the County shall have no further 
obligation to provide, facilitate or coordinate services specified herein or in the Animal 
Control Services Agreement or Animal Licensing Services Agreement.   Each City shall 
promptly pay its Proportionate Share of Cost as set forth in Exhibit B for all services 
rendered prior to termination.” 
 
 
8.  Section 5.15 of the Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety with a new 
Section 5.15 to read as follows:  
 
“5.15 Notices.  Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or 
permitted under this Agreement shall be deemed to be properly given when both:  (1) 
transmitted via facsimile to the telephone number listed below or transmitted via email to 
the email address listed below; and (2) sent to the physical address listed below by either 
being deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited for overnight 
delivery, charges prepaid, with an established overnight courier that provides a tracking 
number showing confirmation of receipt. 
 
Any notices required by or given pursuant to this Agreement to any City shall be in 
writing and shall be delivered to the Clerk of that City at the address of the principal 
business offices of the respective City listed in the introduction of this Agreement or at 
such other address as any City may specify in writing to the County. 
 
In the case of County, to: 
Name/Title: Louise F. Rogers, Chief of San Mateo County Health 
Address: 225-37th Avenue San Mateo, CA  94403 
Telephone: 650.573.2912 
Facsimile: 650.573.2788                     
Email:             LRogers@smcgov.org” 
 
9. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect 
except as expressly amended herein. 
 
10.  This Amendment shall become effective upon execution by all Parties.  

  



In witness of and in agreement with this Agreement’s terms, the parties, by their duly authorized 
representatives, affix their respective signatures:  

 
 
 

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO 

 

 

By:       

President, Board of Supervisors, San Mateo County 

 

 

Date:     

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:       

Clerk of Said Board 

 

 

 

  



ATTEST:  TOWN OF ATHERTON 

 

 

_________________________________        
Town of Atherton, Clerk  By 
 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF BELMONT 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Belmont, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF BRISBANE 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Brisbane, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF BURLINGAME 

 

 



_________________________________        
City of Burlingame, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  TOWN OF COLMA  

 

 

 

_________________________________        
Town of Colma, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF DALY CITY 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Daly City, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF EAST PALO ALTO 

 



 

_________________________________        
City of East Palo Alto, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF FOSTER CITY 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Foster City, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF HALF MOON BAY 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Half Moon Bay, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH 

 

 



 

_________________________________        
Town of Hillsborough, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF MENLO PARK 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Menlo Park, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF MILLBRAE 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Millbrae, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF PACIFICA 

 

 



_________________________________        
City of Pacifica, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  TOWN OF PORTOLA VALLEY 

 

 

_________________________________        
Town of Portola Valley, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF REDWOOD CITY 

 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of Redwood City, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF SAN BRUNO 



 

 

_________________________________        
City of San Bruno, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF SAN CARLOS 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of San Carlos, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF SAN MATEO 

 

 

_________________________________        
City of San Mateo, Clerk  By 
 

 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

 



 

 

_________________________________        
City of South San Francisco, Clerk  By 
 

 

Dated:    

  

ATTEST:  TOWN OF WOODSIDE 

 

 

_________________________________        
Town of Woodside, Clerk   
  



EXHIBIT B 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF COST 

FY 2020-21 Proportionate Share of Cost: 

 Atherton    0.96% 

 Belmont    2.87% 

 Brisbane   0.83% 

 Burlingame   3.70% 

 Colma    0.52% 

 Daly City   10.35% 

 East Palo Alto   8.48% 

 Foster City   3.02% 

 Half Moon Bay   1.97% 

 Hillsborough   1.63% 

 Menlo Park   4.56% 

 Millbrae    2.26% 

 Pacifica    5.41% 

 Portola Valley   0.45% 

 Redwood City   12.99% 

 San Bruno   5.94% 

 San Carlos   3.14% 

 San Mateo   14.26% 

 South San Francisco  9.97% 

 Woodside   1.11% 

 County    5.59%  



Attachment 2 
Page 14 of 60 

 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN MATEO AND
THE PENINSULA HUMANE SOCIETY & SPCA, A CALIFORNIA NONPROFIT 

CORPORATION 

 

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT is entered into this 01 day of July 2020, 

by and between the County of San Mateo, hereinafter called "County," and Peninsula Humane 

Society, hereinafter called "Contractor".  

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to state law including, but not limited to, Food and Agricultural 

Code Section 31106, Corporations Code Sections 14501 and 14503, and Government Code, 
Section 31000, County may contract for the furnishing of animal control and shelter services; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, County and Contractor (collectively hereinafter, “Parties”) on July 01, 2015 

entered into a written Agreement for Animal Control and Shelter Services, which is set to expire 
on June 30, 2020, in which Contractor agreed to perform and County agreed to compensate 
Contractor for performance of certain specified animal care, animal control, and shelter services 
(hereinafter, “Services Agreement” or “Agreement” ); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Services Agreement to extend the term by 

one year, increase the amount not to exceed contract amount by $6,625,381, and other 
amendments as described herein;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
1. 

 
Section 2.2 Facilities and Equipment of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety.

  
2. Exhibit A Leased Areas of the Agreement is hereby replaced with a new Exhibit A, 

Animal Shelter Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement, attached and incorporated by 
this reference. 



  
 

                                                              Attachment 2  
Page 2 of 60 

 

3. Section 4.1 of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:  
 
In consideration of the services provided by Contractor in accordance with all terms, 
conditions, and specifications set forth herein and in Exhibit C, County shall make 
payment to Contractor based on the rates and in the manner specified in Exhibit E.  In no 
event shall the County’s fiscal obligation under this Services Agreement exceed the 
$38,056,663, except as provided by 7.1 of this Services Agreement. 
  
This not to exceed amount includes the $6,625,381 added by this amendment for the 
period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021.

  
4. Section 9.3 Lease Agreement of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced in its 

entirety with a new Section 9.3 Shelter Facility to read as follows:  
 
9.3 Shelter Facility.  The Parties agree that, notwithstanding any reference to the prior 
Lease in Section 7.3 or elsewhere in the Agreement, the prior Lease of the Shelter 
grounds as referenced in the Agreement has terminated and Contractor has moved to and 
is occupying the new County owned Animal Shelter.   Contractor shall occupy and use 
the newly constructed County owned Animal Shelter at 12 Airport Blvd, San Mateo, CA 
94401 for the provision of services under this Agreement with the permission of County 
only for a term coterminous with this Agreement, under the terms of the Animal Shelter 
Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by this 
reference as Exhibit A.   

  
5. Section 9.1 Services Agreement of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 
9.1 Term of Services Agreement.  Subject to compliance with all terms and 
conditions, the term of this Services Agreement shall be from July 1, 2015, through June 
30, 2021. 
 
In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, maps, 
photographs, reports, and materials (hereafter referred to as materials) prepared by 
Contractor under this Services Agreement shall become the property of County and shall 
be promptly delivered to County.  Upon termination, Contractor may make and retain a 
copy of such materials.  Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for work/services 
provided prior to termination of this Services Agreement.  Such payment shall be that 
portion of the full payment which is determined by comparing the work/services 
completed to the work/services required by this Services Agreement. 
 



 

 
 

Attachment 2 
Page 3 of 60 

 

6. Section 23 Notices of the Agreement is amended to read as follows: 
  
23. Notices  Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or 
permitted under this Services Agreement shall be deemed to be properly given when 
both:  (1) transmitted via facsimile to the telephone number listed below or transmitted 
via email to the email address listed below; and (2) sent to the physical address listed 
below by either being deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited 
for overnight delivery, charges prepaid, with an established overnight courier that 
provides a tracking number showing confirmation of receipt. 
 
In the case of County, to: 
Name/Title: Louise Rogers, Chief of the Health System 
Address 225-37th Avenue, San Mateo, CA  94403 
Telephone: 650.573.2532  
Facsimile: 650.573.2788            
Email:             LRogers@smcgov.org 
 
In the case of Contractor, to: 
Name/Title: Ken White, President 
Address: 1450 Rollins Road, Burlingame, CA  94010 
Telephone: 650.685.8502 
Facsimile: 650.348.7891 
Email:             kwhite@peninsulahumanesociety.org

  
7. Original Exhibit E Payments and Rates is replaced with Revised Exhibit E, Payments and 

Rates, attached and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 
  
8. Original Attachment 1 Public Works Inspection, dated March 16, 2009, of the Agreement 

is deleted. 
  
9. Original Attachment 2 Quarantine Algorithm of the Agreement is hereby replaced with a 

new Attachment 2 Quarantine Algorithm (revised and approved June 16, 2016), attached 
and incorporated as Attachment 2 by this reference.   

  
10. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement between the County and Contractor 

shall remain in full force and effect except as expressly amended herein. 
  
11. This Amendment shall become effective upon execution by the Parties, but only if the 

amendment also extending the term of the agreement between the County and the twenty 



cities for animal control services to June 30, 2021 has been fully executed by County and 
the twenty cities. 

 
 
 

 
Attachment 2  
Page 4 of 60 

 
In witness of and in agreement with this Agreement’s terms, the Parties, by their duly authorized 
representatives, affix their respective signatures: 
 
For Contractor: PENINSULA HUMANE SOCIETY 

 

$:ag4  $ ag $
Contractor Signature  Date Name of Signing Person 

(please print) 
 

 

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO 

 

 

By:       

President, Board of Supervisors, San Mateo County 

 

 

Date:     

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:       

Clerk of Said Board 

  



 
Attachment 2  
Page 5 of 60 

 
Exhibit A 

 
(Animal Shelter Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement between County and PHS to be inserted by each City as 

labeled as Exh. A to the PHS amendment)   
  



Attachment 2 
Page 6 of 60 

 
Exhibit E 

Payments and Rates 

In consideration of the services provided by Contractor in Exhibit C & D and subject to the 
terms of this Services Agreement: 

1.  County shall pay Contractor in twelve (12) equal monthly installments the annual amount 
of: 

Fiscal Year and Amount 

2015-16 $5,944,135 

2016-17 $6,122,459                    

2017-18 $6,275,521 

2018-19 $6,463,786 

2019-20 $6,625,381 

2020-21 $6,625,381 

 

2.  Contractor shall pay County in twelve (12) monthly payments all fees collected for services 
provided in Exhibit C and outlined in Exhibit D.   

 

 

 

  



Attachment 2  
Page 7 of 60 

 
Attachment 2 

 

 
 

 



Attachment 2  
Page 8 of 60 

 
 

 

 



Attachment 2  
Page 9 of 60 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Attachment 2  
Page 10 of 60 

  
 
 

 
 



 
 

Attachment 2  
Page 11 of 60 

 

 
 
 
 



 
Attachment 2  
Page 12 of 60 

 



Attachment 3  
page 1 of 34 

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO  
                        Inter-Departmental Correspondence 

Health System  

 
 Date:  July 8, 2014  

      Board Meeting Date: September 9, 2014  

             Special Notice / Hearing:  None  

          Vote Required:  Majority  

To:                 Honorable Board of Supervisors  

From:            Jean S. Fraser, Chief, Health System  
James C. Porter, Director, Public Works  
 

Subject:  Approve the Memorandum of Agreement with All Cities in San Mateo County to 
Build an Animal Care Shelter  

RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt a resolution to approve the Memorandum of Agreement with all cities in San Mateo 
County to construct a new Animal Care Shelter at Airport Boulevard in the city of San Mateo 
and to provide a 30-year lease agreement for the use of the shelter by all cities, and the 
County.   

BACKGROUND:  
Since 1951, San Mateo County (County) has managed animal control field and sheltering 
services for all cities in the County, through a contract with the Peninsula Humane Society / 
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (PHS/SPCA). PHS/SPCA provides animal 
sheltering services in a PHS/SPCA-owned building, located on County property at Airport 
Boulevard.  

The PHS/SPCA building has been evaluated twice in recent years by the County Public 
Works Department.  PHS/SPCA has informed the County that its building is inadequate to 
meet the current standards for animal care.  The Public Works Department has further 
determined that it is not viable to significantly repair or upgrade the current building.  
PHS/SPCA has determined that it will not construct a new building for services provided 
exclusively to the County and cities.  

On February 15, 2013, your Board requested a list of capital projects required to improve 
the condition of the County’s existing buildings.  The list was presented as the Five Year 
Facilities Capital Plan to your Board on August 6, 2013, and included was a new animal 
shelter building with a total estimated cost of $20 million.  



Attachment 3  
page 2 of 34 

 
DISCUSSION:  
The Public Works Department conducted an extensive review of mandated animal 
sheltering services, local utilization and similar Bay Area projects.  Ultimately, the Public 
Works Department determined that the cost of constructing a new shelter would be 
between $15.1 million and $20.2 million.  The Public Works Department also considered 
alternatives to constructing a new shelter  

such as retrofitting County-owned buildings or using pre-fabricated building technologies.  
All of the alternatives were determined to be more expensive than building a new shelter 
from a life-cycle cost perspective.   

A new shelter, similar to the current shelter, would house animals from all cities and 
unincorporated areas in the County.  All participating entities would save money by sharing 
in this service agreement.  The County would serve as the lead agency in managing the 
construction of the new building, and would be the sole owner of the completed building.  All 
participating entities, including the County, would share the cost by repaying the County 
through a 30-year, interest-free lease agreement.  As of May 6,  
2014, all participating entities have approved the cost participation Memorandum of 
Agreement (Attachment A).  

The terms of the Memorandum of Agreement dictate that the lease amount paid by each 
participating entity will be calculated each year using a combination of a 3-year average for 
shelter usage (weighted at 80%) and population (weighted at 20%)  
(Attachment B).  The basis for this allocation is to attribute a larger cost share to level of 
shelter services used by each participating entity, and a smaller portion to potential use 
captured by population.    

Construction is expected to begin in the fall of 2014 and be completed within 18 months. 
The current building would remain open during construction.   The County also will be the 
lead agency in evaluating potential environmental impacts; each city will have an 
opportunity to comment at the time the County determines what environmental review 
process is appropriate.  

The lease payments would commence once the new building receives its certificate of 
occupancy, projected to be in late 2015.  

Approval of this Memorandum of Agreement contributes to the Shared Vision 2025 
outcome of a Healthy Community by providing a facility to quarantine and shelter animals.  
It is anticipated that the completed facility will shelter 17,500 animals during FY 2015-16.  

PERFORMANCE MEASURE(S):  
Measure  FY 2013-14 Actual  FY 2015-16 Projected  

Number of animals sheltered.  17,409  17,500  
 



Attachment 3  
page 3 of 34 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The County is willing to advance the funding – estimated to be between $15.1 million and 
$20.2 million - for the new building’s construction, as all participating entities have approved 
the Memorandum of Agreement.  Additionally, the County will participate in Attachment 3 
page 3 of 35 

the lease as a partner with the cities; the County’s estimated share of lease payments, 
based on Memorandum of Agreement payment methodology, is expected to be $19,611 to 
$26,235 annually.     



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



  

 

 



 

 

 



Attachment 3 
page 31 of 34 

ATTACHMENT B  

Methodology = Based on an 3-yr avg of shelter use (80%) and % of population (20%) 

ANIMAL CONTROL COSTS PROPOSED COST DISTRIBUTION - ESTIMATED LEASE AMOUNTS TO RECOUP CONSTRUCTION COSTS 

CITY Shelter Use Shelter Use Shelter Use    $15,100,000 $20,200,000

 CALENDAR YEAR      

 
Yr 1 2009 Actual Yr 2 2010 Actual Yr 3 2011 Actual

3 YR AVG OF SHELTER 
USE 

POPULATION % of Total Pop

EST ANNUAL LEASE 
AMT 

EST ANNUAL LEASE 
AMT 

Atherton 1.12% 1.00% 0.36% 0.83% 6,914 1.0% $4,297 $5,749
Belmont 3.26% 3.54% 2.65% 3.15% 25,835 3.6% $16,304 $21,811
Brisbane 0.99% 0.99% 0.71% 0.90% 4,282 0.6% $4,211 $5,633

Burlingame 3.51% 3.48% 3.20% 3.40% 28,806 4.0% $17,713 $23,696
Colma 0.61% 0.98% 0.60% 0.73% 1,792 0.2% $3,191 $4,268
Daly City 8.52% 9.57% 10.16% 9.42% 101,123 14.1% $52,087 $69,679

East Palo Alto 6.61% 6.75% 8.44% 7.27% 28,155 3.9% $33,205 $44,420

Foster City 2.82% 2.39% 1.93% 2.38% 30,567 4.3% $13,866 $18,550
Half Moon Bay 5.21% 5.04% 2.47% 4.24% 11,324 1.6% $18,660 $24,962

Hillsborough 1.59% 1.29% 1.14% 1.34% 10,825 1.5% $6,912 $9,247

Menlo Park 4.90% 4.95% 4.50% 4.78% 32,026 4.5% $23,748 $31,769
Millbrae 1.90% 1.99% 1.98% 1.96% 21,532 3.0% $10,896 $14,576
Pacifica 5.72% 6.38% 4.78% 5.63% 37,234 5.2% $27,874 $37,288

Portola Valley 0.90% 0.76% 0.16% 0.61% 4,353 0.6% $3,053 $4,084
Redwood City 12.91% 13.24% 13.25% 13.13% 76,815 10.7% $63,647 $85,143
San Bruno 5.23% 5.19% 6.86% 5.76% 41,114 5.7% $28,954 $38,734

San Carlos 3.35% 3.45% 3.00% 3.27% 28,406 4.0% $17,134 $22,921
San Mateo 15.82% 14.67% 17.84% 16.11% 97,207 13.5% $78,490 $105,000
S. San Francisco 9.08% 9.34% 11.99% 10.14% 63,632 8.9% $49,733 $66,530

Woodside 4.41% 1.27% 1.07% 2.25% 5,287 0.7% $9,801 $13,111

County 1.57% 3.73% 2.92% 2.74% 61,222 8.5% $19,611 $26,235
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 718,451 100.0% $503,387 $673,405



 

Template Version Date – August 26, 2016                                                                                                                                                    Page 1 

 

  

 

 



 

Template Version Date – August 26, 2016                                                                                                                                                    Page 2 

 

  

 

 



 

Template Version Date – August 26, 2016                                                                                                                                                    Page 3 

 

 

 



 

Template Version Date – August 26, 2016                                                                                                                                                    Page 4 

 

 



Attachment C

























































































































































































Staff Report re: LEAP Planning Grant Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Michael Laughlin AICP, City Planner 

Suzanne Avila AICP, Deputy City Planner 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: LEAP Planning Grant Program Funds 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT PLANNING SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) grant funding is currently available to local agencies for the 
preparation of planning activities that accelerate housing production.  Colma is eligible for 
$65,000.00 in non-competitive funding which can be used to offset the cost of the 2023 
Housing Element update. The City Council must adopt, and staff must submit the attached 
resolution as part of the Town’s application package for the LEAP funding. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The grant would have a net positive fiscal impact to the Town of $65,000 and offset the 
existing CIP program costs for the preparation of the General Plan Housing Element, currently 
estimated at $73,000. 

BACKGROUND 

HCD has released a 2020 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) and is currently accepting 
applications for the LEAP Grants Program. The LEAP Grants Program set aside approximately 
$119 million dollars to provide funding to jurisdictions for the preparation and adoption of 
planning documents, process improvements that accelerate housing production, and facilitate 
compliance in implementing the 6th cycle of the regional housing need assessment. HCD has 
determined maximum award amounts for large, medium, and small localities, based on 

Item #5



Staff Report re: LEAP Planning Grant   Page 2 of 3 

population. Based on population size, the Town of Colma qualifies for a $65,000 grant award. 
This is a non-competitive grant opportunity that does not require a local match to receive the 
funds. Final grant applications must be submitted by July 1, 2020. 
 
Planning staff is recommending using the LEAP grant funds for the preparation of the 6th Cycle 
(2023-2031) Housing Element. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The LEAP Grants Program is part of a broader program formerly known as the Local 
Government Planning Support Grants Program that was established as part of the 2019-20 
Budget Act. The 2019-20 Budget Act provides support, incentives, resources and accountability 
to meet California’s housing goals. Some of these elements are: 
 

• Planning Support (local and regional planning grants) 
• Incentives (Pro-housing preference and infill incentive grants) 
• Funding Resources 
• Accountability (penalties for noncompliant housing plans) 
• Reform (collaborative processes to reform regional housing needs) 

 
The Local Government Planning Support Grants Program provides one-time grant funding to 
local jurisdictions for technical assistance, preparation and adoption of planning documents, and 
process improvements. The over-arching goals of the program are to accelerate housing 
production and facilitate compliance to implement the sixth cycle of the regional housing need 
assessment (RHNA). 
 
The Town has produced more than the 59 units required by the state for the current Housing 
Element cycle (2015-2023).  However, staff is anticipating that the next Housing Element cycle 
(2023-2031) will require the Town to show potential development sites for significantly more 
units. Staff will be proposing in the draft General Plan the concept of a Town Center which 
could accommodate at least 200 units.  Since there are few opportunities to build new housing 
elsewhere in the Town, staff anticipates that the Town Center site will be the primary site 
designated for new housing, in addition to the Sandblaster and Bocci sites already designated.   
 
Article VII of the NOFA, which implements, interprets, and establishes specific provisions, 
terms, conditions, forms, procedures, and other mechanisms for the LEAP Grants Program, lists 
the eligible activities and uses of LEAP Program funding. Eligible activities must demonstrate an 
increase in housing related planning activities and facilitate accelerated housing production.  
Eligible activities may include updates to planning documents such as General Plans, community 
plans, specific plans, implementation of sustainable communities’ strategies, and local coastal 
programs.  The Housing Element update, is an eligible activity for which LEAP funds may be 
used, because it will designate areas for new development and housing in the Town. Staff is 
currently preparing the grant application documents which include an analysis showing the 
nexus between the Housing Element update process and housing production.  
 
Staff has reviewed the requirements for the Town to receive LEAP funds and determined that 
these requirements can be met. The Town may request LEAP grant funding by completing an 
application that demonstrates:  



Staff Report re: LEAP Planning Grant   Page 3 of 3 

 
• A budget, including timelines, deliverables, sub-steps and adoption, that demonstrates 

funds will be utilized for eligible activities and uses. 
• How proposed activities will increase housing planning and facilitate accelerating local 

housing production. 
• Completed or proposed activities are consistent with the state or other planning 

priorities. 
• All other requirement information contained in the application has been provided. 

 
The Town can demonstrate consistency with these application requirements and can submit an 
application to receive funding. 
 
Council Adopted Values 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it 
considers how to best use and leverage state funding to offset the cost of updating the Town’s 
Housing Element. 

Sustainability Impact 
 
The proposal may indirectly benefit the environment since it allows for the creation of needed 
housing for those working in San Mateo County.  Additional housing would likely reduce 
commuting by workers who currently live outside of the region or encourage public transit use, 
thereby lowering GHG emissions.  
 
Alternatives 
 
The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution authorizing staff to apply for the LEAP 
Grant funding. This alternative is not recommended since the Town would miss the opportunity 
to receive $65,000 in non-competitive funding and be required to expend General Fund monies 
to update the Housing Element.  
 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the application for and 
receipt of LEAP Funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res 2020-__, LEAP FUNDS Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT PLANNING SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) Pursuant to Health and Safety Code 50515 et seq., the Department of Housing and 
Community Development (“Department”) is authorized to issue a Notice of Funding Availability 
(“NOFA”) as part of the Local Government Planning Support Grants Program (hereinafter referred 
to by the Department as the “Local Early Action Planning Grants program” or “LEAP”).  

(b) The City Council of the Town of Colma desires to submit a LEAP grant application package 
(“Application”), on the forms provided by the Department, for approval of grant funding for 
projects that assist in the preparation and adoption of planning documents and process 
improvements that accelerate housing production and facilitate compliance to implement the sixth 
cycle of the regional housing need assessment. 

(c) The Department has issued a NOFA and Application on January 27, 2020 in the amount 
of $119,040,000 for assistance to all California Jurisdictions. 

2. Order.

(a) The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and submit to the 
Department the Application package. 

(b)  In connection with the LEAP grant, if the Application is approved by the Department, the 
City Manager of the Town of Colma is authorized to submit the Application, enter into, execute, 
and deliver on behalf of the Applicant, a State of California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for 
the amount of $65,000, and any and all other documents required or deemed necessary or 
appropriate to evidence and secure the LEAP grant, the Applicant’s obligations related thereto, 
and all amendments thereto,  

(c)  The Applicant shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the NOFA, and 
the Standard Agreement provided by the Department after approval. The Application and any 
and all accompanying documents are incorporated in full as part of the Standard Agreement. Any 
and all activities funded, information provided, and timelines represented in the Application will 
be enforceable through the fully executed Standard Agreement. Pursuant to the NOFA and in 
conjunction with the terms of the Standard Agreement, the Applicant hereby agrees to use the 
funds for eligible uses and allowable expenditures in the manner presented and specifically 
identified in the approved Application. 

(d) The City Manager is authorized to execute the Town of Colma LEAP application, the LEAP 
Grant Documents, and any amendments thereto, subject to any changes in form or technical 
language deemed necessary by the City Manager and City Attorney, on behalf of the Town of 

Attachment A



 
Res 2020-__, LEAP GRANT FUNDS  Page 2 of 2 
  

Colma as required by the Housing and Community Development Department for receipt of the 
LEAP Grant. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. ____ was adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on May 27, 2020 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Helen Fisicaro      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 
 
Dated              

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________ 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



25977.00110\32955878.2 
Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units Page 1 of 5 
 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Michael P. Laughlin, City Planner 

Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: Accessory Dwelling Unit Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the following ordinance: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 5 AND REPEALING 
AND REPLACING SUBCHAPTER 5.19 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 
ACCESSORY AND JUNIOR ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND DETERMINING THE 
ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT FROM CEQA  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

New state laws relating to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 
(JADUs), became effective on January 1, 2020.  The bills were enacted to require jurisdictions in 
California to ease restrictions on additional units in single-family residential neighborhoods in 
order to increase the supply of housing in California. The law allows ADUs and JADUs by right 
(without discretionary approvals such as design review or a conditional use permit), either by 
conversion of existing space within the dwelling or garage or through an attached or detached 
addition. The ability for the Town to impose additional parking, a deed restriction on occupancy, 
or impact fees is extremely limited under the legislation.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance may have a small fiscal impact on the Town because of services 
required for new residents if additional units are created as a result of the ordinance. Given that 
Colma is largely built-out and has relatively small lots, the number of potential units is 
anticipated to be small.  

BACKGROUND & EXISTING ORDINANCE 

In 2017, the Town made substantial changes to the Municipal Code to ease standards for the 
creation of ADUs in response to state legislation at that time. The Town’s current Municipal 
Code allows for single-family residences and ADUs in the following zones: 

Item #6



25977.00110\32955878.2 
 

Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units   Page 2 of 5 
 

• R-S (Residential, Sterling Park) This is the residential neighborhood between El Camino 
Real and Hillside Boulevard and between F Street and B Street.  The neighborhood 
contains a majority of single-family homes but also includes some multi-unit buildings 
that predate the zoning. Many of the lots are about 3,300 square feet. 

• R (Residential) This zone includes three residences on Hillside Boulevard south of 
Lawndale Boulevard, all of which were initially built with ADUs. 

• G (Cemetery). These units are in the form of caretaker units.  There are several of these 
located on cemetery grounds.  

• C (Commercial). The Town’s commercial zoning allows for single-family residences in 
commercial zones and where allowed by the General Plan. Multi-family housing is also 
allowed in these limited areas.  The location of these existing single-family residences 
includes Mission Road and Hillside Boulevard. 

The Town's General Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Housing Element encourage the creation of 
affordable housing through a variety of mechanisms including the allowance of ADUs in 
specified zones within the Town.   

Below is a summary of current regulations for ADUs in Colma: 

Existing single-family residences w ithin single family residential zones (R and 
R-S zones) 

ADUs are permitted within the footprint of an existing single-family structure located 
within a single-family residential zone.  For these situations, the following rules currently 
apply: 

• One unit must be owner occupied and a deed restriction recorded; 

• The owner is not required to install a new or separate utility connection directly 
between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility or pay a related connection 
fee or capacity charge; 

• The owner shall provide replacement off-street parking spaces to serve the 
primary residence if the proposed accessory dwelling unit would result from the 
conversion of an existing garage, carport or other covered parking structure.  
However, the applicant is not required to provide off-street parking to serve the 
accessory dwelling unit.  The replacement parking spaces may be located in any 
configuration on the lot and may be provided as covered spaces, uncovered 
spaces or tandem spaces or by the use of mechanical automobile parking lifts.    

New ADUs in new ly created space 

Colma’s current Municipal Code allows an ADU to be constructed as a physical addition 
onto an existing single-family residence or as a detached structure.   

 



25977.00110\32955878.2 
 

Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units   Page 3 of 5 
 

ANALYSIS AND NEW REQUIREMENTS 

In 2019, the California Legislature approved, and the Governor signed into law a number of bills 
(“New ADU Laws”) that, among other things, amended Government Code section 65852.2 and 
65852.22 to impose new limits on local authority to regulate ADUs and JADUs.  The New ADU 
Laws took effect January 1, 2020, and because the Town’s ADU ordinance does not comply 
with the New ADU Laws, the Town’s ordinance became null and void on that date as a matter 
of law.  

This proposed ordinance amends the Town’s local regulatory scheme for the construction of 
ADUs and JADUs to comply with the amended provisions of Government Code sections 65852.2 
and 65852.22. 

Without a local, compliant ordinance, the Town would have to approve ADUs and JADUs under 
the default state law provisions. The approval of ADUs and JADUs based solely on the default 
state law provisions, without local regulations governing height, setback, landscape, 
architectural review, among other things, threatens the character of existing neighborhoods, 
and negatively impacts property values, personal privacy, and fire safety. 

Special rules apply to four types of ADUs/JADUS, including: 
• JADUs and ADUs that are created by converting space in an existing or proposed 

primary dwelling or in an existing accessory structure,  

• new construction of a detached ADU up to 800 sq. ft. and 16 feet in height, with a 
JADU also permitted,  

• on a lot with existing multi-family residential, up to two detached units, and  

• on a lot with existing multi-family residential, one or more converted ADUs created 
within existing non-livable space, up to an amount equal to 25 percent of the existing 
non-ADU units.  

The following is a list of the changes in state law that are reflected in the attached draft 
ordinance: 

 
a. Review  and Approval. The approval process for ADUs continues to be ministerial, 

with more restrictions. The Town will now have 60 days from submittal of a 
complete application – currently 120 days – to act on applications. If an ADU is built 
in conjunction with a single-family home, the approval process timeline is the same 
as the home. 

 
b. JADUs Must Be Allowed. Jurisdictions must now allow JADUs. Under prior state 

law, JADUs were optional. Both a JADU in an existing space and a new detached 
ADU up to 800 sq. ft. and 16 feet in height may occur on the same single-family lot, 
with some limitations. 
 



25977.00110\32955878.2 
 

Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units   Page 4 of 5 
 

c. Mandatory Approval on Single-Family Lots. Cities may not prohibit an owner of 
a single-family lot from building an ADU if it is:  
 

• Created from existing space – Conversion of existing space including up to a 
150 sq. ft. expansion for ingress and egress only. 

• Newly constructed detached – Up to 800 sq. ft., 16 feet high, and subject 
only to 4-foot rear and side setbacks. No other standards apply, besides the 
building code. 

 
d. Multifamily Lots May Include ADUs 

 
• In existing non-livable space – Multifamily dwelling structures may now 

include converted ADUs, but only if they are created from existing space that 
is not currently used for living (e.g., storage units, attics, garages). An owner 
may create at least one of these, regardless of the number of existing 
dwelling units, and may create more, up to an amount equal to 25 percent of 
the existing non-ADU units (example: 4-unit building would be allowed 1 
ADU; a building with 8 to 11 units would be allowed 2 ADUs; and a 12-unit 
building would be allowed 3 ADUs). As with all types of ADUs, these must 
conform to the building code. 

• New constructed detached – ADU owners may add up to two detached units 
in a newly constructed building (no more than 16 feet high with 4-foot side 
and rear setbacks) 
 

e. Standards and Additional Limitations 
 
• Correction of Nonconforming Zoning: May not be required for any ADU that is 

approved ministerially under the new state laws. 
• Owner Occupancy: Cities may not require for new ADUs built between 2020-

2025 but must require for JADUs.  
• Short-term Rentals: Jurisdictions may prohibit rentals for fewer than 30 days and 

in certain cases doing so is a requirement, such as if ADU falls under subsection 
(e) of Government Code section 65852.2. 

• Location: ADUs and JADUs that are subject to special rules under Government 
Code section 65852.2, subdivision (e), are allowed in all residential and mixed-
use zones.  Other ADUs are allowed in all zones (e.g., residential, mixed-use, 
commercial) that allow any kind of residential use (single- or multifamily), with 
only limited exceptions where there is evidence that water and sewer 
infrastructure is inadequate or ADUs will have an adverse effect on traffic flow or 
public safety. 

• Lot Size: Jurisdictions may no longer consider lot size when approving an ADU; 
lot coverage can still be considered if the ADU is more than 800 sq. ft 

• Impact Fees: None if less than 750 sq. ft and proportional to primary unit if more 
than 750 sq. ft. 

• Maximum: Must allow at least 850 sq. ft for 1 bedroom and 1000 sq. ft for 2 
bedrooms, though other standards may indirectly restrict ADU size  

• Setbacks and Height: 4-foot side and rear setbacks on all ADUs; no front-yard 
setback for ADUs subject to special rules under Government Code section 



25977.00110\32955878.2 
 

Staff Report re Accessory Dwelling Units   Page 5 of 5 
 

65852.2(e); front-yard setbacks for all other ADUs; and no limit on height below 
16-foot 

• Parking: The town may not require applicants to replace parking that is lost by 
demolishing or converting a garage, carport, or covered parking. 
 

f. Amnesty Program. Allows owners to request delayed enforcement of building-
code violations in an ADU for five years if there are no health and safety issues. 
Sunsets in 2030. 

  
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

Under California Public Resources Code section 21080.17, the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”) does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a city or county implementing 
the provisions of section 65852.2 of the Government Code, which is California’s ADU law and 
which also regulates JADUs, as defined by section 65852.22. Therefore, the proposed ordinance 
is statutorily exempt from CEQA in that the proposed ordinance implements the State’s ADU 
law.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it will 
update Accessory Dwelling Unit requirements so that the Town’s ordinance is consistent with 
state law, while also recognizing the unique characteristics of Colma. 

Sustainability Impact 
 
The amendment allows for in-fill housing, which has a positive environmental and sustainability 
impact by conserving land resources and allowing for housing close to transit.  
 
Alternative 
 
The City Council could choose not to introduce the ordinance which would keep the existing 
second unit (ADU) provisions in the CMC.  However, because the Town’s current provisions are 
not consistent with state law, the current provisions are null and void and only state law will 
control. Not adopting the ordinance is not recommended because doing so would forgo local 
control and the ability to guide ADU development to be more compatible with the Town’s 
character and goals.  

Introducing the ordinance is recommended since it clarifies local accessory dwelling unit 
requirements in compliance with state law. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council introduce and adopt the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Ordinance 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



25977.00110\32955884.2 
Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 1 of 14 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 5 AND REPEALING 
AND REPLACING SUBCHAPTER 5.19 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 

ACCESSORY AND JUNIOR ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND DETERMINING THE 
ORDINANCE TO BE EXEMPT FROM CEQA 

The City Council of the Town of Colma finds as follows: 

a) The Town of Colma, California (“City”) is a municipal corporation, duly organized under the
constitution and laws of the State of California;

b) The Planning and Zoning Law authorizes cities to act by ordinance to provide for the creation
and regulation of accessory dwelling units (“ADUs”) and junior accessory dwelling units
(“JADUs”);

c) In 2019, the California Legislature approved, and the Governor signed into law a number of
bills (“New ADU Laws”) that, among other things, amended Government Code section
65852.2 and 65852.22 to impose new limits on local authority to regulate ADUs and JADUs;

d) The City desires to amend its local regulatory scheme for the construction of ADUs and JADUs
to comply with the amended provisions of Government Code sections 65852.2 and 65852.22;

e) Failure to comply with Government Code sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 (as amended) as of
January 1, 2020 renders the Town’s ordinance regulating ADUs and JADUs null and void,
thereby limiting the City to the application of the few default standards provided in
Government Code sections 65852.2 and 65852.22 for the approval of ADUs and JADUs;

f) The approval of ADUs and JADUs based solely on the default statutory standards, without
local regulations governing height, setback, landscape, architectural review, among other
things, threatens the character of existing neighborhoods, and is likely to negatively impact
property values, personal privacy, and fire safety;

g) The City Council has reviewed and considered the public testimony and agenda reports
prepared in connection with this ordinance, including the policy considerations discussed
therein; and

h) In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Resources Code, § 21000
et seq.) (“CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 15000 et seq.),
the City has determined that the revisions to the Colma Municipal Code are exempt from
environmental review.

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

Attachment A



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 2 of 14 
 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SECTION 5.03.060 AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.060(b), subsection (1) is hereby amended as follows, with all other subsections 
remaining unchanged: 

(b) The following uses may be permitted by the City Council on land located in the “G” Zone upon 
issuance of a use permit in accordance with the procedures set forth:  

(1) Any use which not or hereafter may be customarily incident to a cemetery or memorial park 
use, including a single caretaker unit with or without an ADU or JADU as permitted in Section 
5.03.19, flower shops, monument shops, crematoriums, and cemetery corporation yards;  

[History: formerly § 5.312; ORD. 234, 3/14/79; ORD. 325, 11/13/85; ORD. 480, 5/10/95; 
ORD. 520, 12/10/97; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. 770, 3/22/17; ORD. 
772, 7/26/17; ORD. XX, xx/xx/20]  

 
ARTICLE 2. CMC SECTION 5.03.080 AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.080(a), subsection (7) is hereby amended as follows, with all other subsections 
remaining unchanged: 

(a) The following uses are permitted on land located within the "R-S" Zone:  

(7) An accessory or junior accessory dwelling unit within the existing single-family residential 
structure as permitted in Subchapter 5.19; and 

 [History: formerly § 5.313.1, ORD. 536, 7/8/98, ORD. 617, 6/16/04; ORD. 638, 12/14/05; ORD. 
685, 1/13/10; ORD. 706, 3/14/12; ORD. 724, 6/12/13; ORD. 728, 10/9/13; ORD. 770, 3/22/17; 
ORD. XX, xx/xx/20]  

 
ARTICLE 3. CMC SUBCHAPTER 5.19 REPEALED AND REPLACED. 

Subchapter 5.19 is hereby is repealed in its entirety and replaced as follows:  

CHAPTER FIVE: PLANNING, ZONING, USE, AND  
DEVELOPMENT OF LAND AND IMPROVEMENTS  

 
Subchapter 5.19: Accessory and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 

5.19.010 Purpose.  

The purpose of this section is to allow and regulate accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and junior 
accessory dwelling units (JADUs) in compliance with California Government Code sections 
65852.2 and 65852.22. 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 3 of 14 
 

5.19.020 Definitions. 

For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply. 

 “Accessory dwelling unit” or “ADU” means an attached or a detached residential 
dwelling unit that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons 
and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residence. An accessory 
dwelling unit also includes the following: 

An efficiency unit, as defined by Section 17958.1 of the California Health and 
Safety Code; and 

A manufactured home, as defined by Section 18007 of the California Health and 
Safety Code.  

“Accessory Structure” means a structure that is accessory and incidental to a dwelling 
located on the same lot. 
 
 “Complete independent living facilities” means permanent provisions for living, sleeping, 
eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family or multifamily 
dwelling is or will be situated. 

“Efficiency kitchen” means a kitchen that includes each of the following: 

A. A cooking facility with appliances. 

B. A food preparation counter or counters that total at least 15 square feet in area. 

C. Food storage cabinets that total at least 30 square feet of shelf space. 

“Junior accessory dwelling unit” or “JADU” means a residential unit that: 

A. is no more than 500 square feet in size,  

B. is contained entirely within an existing or proposed single-family structure,  

C. includes its own separate sanitation facilities or shares sanitation facilities with 
the existing or proposed single-family structure, and 

D. includes an efficiency kitchen, as defined above. 

“Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including basements 
and attics, but does not include a garage or any accessory structure. 

“Nonconforming zoning condition” means a physical improvement on a property that 
does not conform with current zoning standards. 

“Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from 
a street to one entrance of the ADU or JADU. 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 4 of 14 
 

“Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application and that 
meets the requirements for permitting. 

“Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train 
station, where the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of 
transportation that charge set fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the public. 

“Tandem parking” means that two or more automobiles are parked on a driveway or in 
any other location on a lot, lined up behind one another. 

5.19.030 Effect of Conforming Accessory Dwelling Unit 

An ADU or JADU that conforms to this chapter shall:  

A. Be deemed an accessory use or an accessory building and shall not be considered 
to exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which it is located; 

B. Be deemed a residential use that is consistent with the General Plan and the zoning 
designations for the lot; and 

C. Not considered in the application of any ordinance, policy, or program to limit 
residential growth; and 

D. Not required to correct a nonconforming zoning condition, as defined in section 
5.19.020. This does not prevent the City from enforcing compliance with applicable 
building standards in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 17980.12.  

5.19.040 Approvals  

The following approvals apply to ADUs and JADUs under this section: 

A. Building-permit Only. If an ADU or JADU complies with each of the general 
requirements in subsection 5.19.050, it is allowed with only a building permit in 
the following scenarios: 

1. Converted on Single-family Lot: Except as set forth in subparagraph 
A.2 below, only one ADU or JADU on a lot with a proposed or existing 
single-family dwelling on it, where the ADU or JADU: 

(a) Is either: within the space of a proposed single-family dwelling; 
within the existing space of an existing single-family dwelling; or 
within the existing space of an accessory structure, plus up to 150 
additional square feet if the expansion is limited to 
accommodating ingress and egress and meets required setbacks. 

(b) Has exterior access that is independent of that for the single-
family dwelling. 

(c) Has side and rear setbacks sufficient for fire and safety, as 
dictated by applicable building and fire codes. 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 5 of 14 
 

2. Limited Detached on Single-family Lot: One detached, new-
construction ADU on a lot with a proposed or existing single-family 
dwelling (in addition to any JADU that might otherwise be established on 
the lot under subsection 5.19.040(A)(1), if the detached ADU satisfies the 
following limitations:: 

(a) The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four-feet. 

(b) The total floor area is 800 square feet or smaller. 

(c) The peak height above grade is 16 feet or less. 

3. Converted on Multifamily Lot: Multiple ADUs within portions of 
existing multifamily dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, 
including but not limited to storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, 
attics, basements, or garages, if each converted ADU complies with state 
building standards for dwellings. At least one converted ADU under this 
paragraph is allowed within an existing multifamily dwelling, up to a 
quantity equal to 25 percent of the existing number of multifamily 
dwelling units. 

4. Limited Detached on Multifamily Lot: No more than two detached 
ADUs on a lot that has an existing multifamily dwelling if each detached 
ADU satisfies the following limitations: 

(a) The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four-feet. 

(b) The peak height above grade is 16 feet or less. 

B. ADU Permit.  

1. Except as allowed under paragraph A.1 of this section, no ADU may be 
created without a building permit and an ADU permit in compliance with 
the standards set forth in subsections 5.19.050 and 5.19.060 below.  

2. The City may charge a fee to reimburse it for costs incurred in processing 
ADU permits, including the costs of adopting or amending the City’s ADU 
ordinance. The ADU-permit processing fee is approved by the City Council 
by resolution. 

C. Process and Timing. 

1. An ADU permit is considered and approved ministerially, without 
discretionary review or a hearing. 

2. The City must act on an application to create an ADU or JADU under 
paragraphs A. or B above within 60 days from the date that the City 
receives a completed application, unless either:  



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 6 of 14 
 

(a) The applicant requests a delay, in which case the 60-day time 
period is tolled for the period of the requested delay, or 

(b) When an application to create an ADU or JADU is submitted with a 
permit application to create a new single-family dwelling on the 
lot, the City may delay acting on the permit application for the 
ADU or JADU until the City acts on the permit application to create 
the new single-family dwelling, but the application to create the 
ADU or JADU will still be considered ministerially without 
discretionary review or a hearing. 

5.19.050 General ADU and JADU Requirements  

The following requirements apply to all ADUs and JADUs that are approved under paragraphs A. 
or B of section 5.19.040.  

A. Zoning.  

1. An ADU or JADU subject only to a building permit under subsection 
5.19.040(A) above may be created on a lot in a residential or mixed-use 
zone.  

B. Fire Sprinklers. Fire sprinklers are required in an ADU if sprinklers are required 
in the primary residence. 

C. Rental Term. No ADU or JADU may be rented for a term that is 30 days or less. 

D. No Separate Conveyance. An ADU or JADU may be rented, but no ADU or 
JADU may be sold or otherwise conveyed separately from the lot and the primary 
dwelling (in the case of a single-family lot) or from the lot and all of the 
dwellings (in the case of a multifamily lot). 

E. Owner Occupancy. 

1. All ADUs created before January 1, 2020 are subject to the owner-
occupancy requirement that was in place when the ADU was created.  

2. An ADU that is created after that date but before January 1, 2025, is not 
subject to any owner-occupancy requirement.  

3. All ADUs that are created on or after January 1, 2025 are subject to an 
owner-occupancy requirement. A natural person with legal or equitable 
title to the property must reside on the property as the person’s legal 
domicile and permanent residence. 

4. All JADUs are subject to an owner-occupancy requirement. A natural 
person with legal or equitable title to the property must reside on the 
property, in either the primary dwelling or JADU, as the person’s legal 
domicile and permanent residence. However, the owner-occupancy 
requirement of this paragraph does not apply if the property is entirely 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 7 of 14 
 

owned by another governmental agency, land trust, or housing 
organization. 

F. Income Reporting. In order to facilitate the city’s obligation to identify 
adequate sites for housing in accordance with Government Code sections 
65583.1 and 65852.2, the following requirements must be satisfied:  

1. With the building-permit application, the applicant must provide the city 
with an estimate of the projected annualized rent that will be charged for 
the ADU or JADU. 

2. Within 90 days after each yearly anniversary of the issuance of the 
building permit, the owner must report the actual rent charged for the 
ADU or JADU during the prior year. If the city does not receive the report 
within the 90-day period, the city may send the owner a notice of 
violation and allow the owner another 30 days to submit the report. If the 
owner fails to submit the report within the 30-day period, the city may 
enforce this provision in accordance with applicable law. 

G. Notice of Construction.  

At least ten business days before starting any construction of an ADU or JADU, the 
property owner must give written notice to all the owners of record of each of the 
adjacent residential parcels, which notice must include the following information: 

1. Notice that construction has been authorized, 

2. The anticipated start and end dates for construction, 

3. The hours of construction, 

4. Contact information for the project manager (for construction-related 
complaints), and 

5. Contact information for the Building & Safety Department. 

6. This notice requirement does not confer a right on the noticed persons or 
on anyone else to comment on the project before permits are issued.  
Approval is ministerial.  Under state law, the City has no discretion in 
approving or denying a particular ADU project under this section.  This 
notice requirement is purely to promote neighborhood awareness and 
expectation.  

5.19.060 Specific ADU Requirements 

The following requirements apply only to ADUs that require an ADU permit under subsection 
5.19.040 B., above. 

 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 8 of 14 
 

A. Maximum Size.  

1. The maximum size of a detached or attached ADU subject to this section 
5.19.060 is 850 square feet for a studio or one-bedroom unit and 1,000 
square feet for a unit with two bedrooms. No more than two bedrooms 
are allowed.  

2. An attached ADU that is created on a lot with an existing primary dwelling 
is further limited to 50 percent of the floor area of the existing primary 
dwelling, subject to subsection A.3 below. 

3. Application of other development standards in this section 5.19.060, such 
as FAR or lot coverage, might further limit the size of the ADU, but no 
application of the percent-based size limitation in paragraph A.2 of this 
section, or of FAR, lot coverage, or open-space requirements may require 
the ADU to be less than 800 square feet. 

B. Floor Area Ratio (FAR). No ADU subject to this section 5.19.060 may cause 
the total FAR of the lot to exceed 45 percent, subject to paragraph A.3 of this 
section. 

C. Lot Coverage. No ADU subject to this section 5.19.060 may cause the total lot 
coverage of the lot to exceed 50 percent, subject to paragraph A.3 of this 
section. 

D. Height.  An ADU may not exceed 16 feet in height above grade, measured to 
the peak of the structure, and one story.  

E. Passageway. No passageway, as defined in section 5.19.020, is required for an 
ADU. 

F. Setbacks.  

1. No part of any ADU subject to this section 5.19.060 may be located 
within 19 feet of the front property line. 

2. No part of any ADU subject to this section 5.19.060 may be located 
within 15 feet of a street-facing property line. 

3. No part of any ADU subject to this section 5.19.060 may be located 
within four feet of a side or rear property line. 

4. No setback is required for an ADU that is subject to this subsection F if 
the ADU is constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions 
as an existing structure. 

 
 
 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 9 of 14 
 

G. Parking.  

1. Generally. One off-street parking space is required for each ADU. The 
parking space may be provided in setback areas or as tandem parking, as 
defined by section 5.19.020. 

2. Exceptions. No parking under paragraph G.1 of this section 5.19.040 is 
required in the following situations: 

(a) The ADU is located within one-half mile walking distance of public 
transit, as defined in section 5.19.020. 

(b) The ADU is located within an architecturally and historically 
significant historic district. 

(c) The ADU is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or 
an accessory structure under paragraph A of section 5.19.060. 

(d) When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to 
the occupant of the ADU. 

(e) When there is an established car share vehicle stop located within 
one block of the ADU. 

3. No Replacement. When a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is 
demolished in conjunction with the construction of an ADU or converted 
to an ADU, those off-street parking spaces are not required to be 
replaced. 

H. Architectural Requirements.  

The following architectural standards shall apply to ADUs that are approved 
under paragraph B of section 5.19.040: 

1. The materials and colors of the exterior walls, roof, and windows and 
doors must match the appearance and architectural design of those of 
the primary dwelling. 

2. The roof slope must match that of the dominant roof slope of the primary 
dwelling. The dominant roof slope is the slope shared by the largest 
portion of the roof. 

3. The exterior lighting must be limited to down-lights unless otherwise 
required by the building or fire code. 

4. The ADU must have an independent exterior entrance, apart from that of 
the primary dwelling. The ADU entrance must be located on the side or 
rear building façade, not facing a public-right-of-way. 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 10 of 14 
 

5. The interior horizontal dimensions of an ADU must be at least 10 feet 
wide in every direction, with a minimum interior wall height of seven feet. 

6. Windows and doors of the ADU may not have a direct line of sight to an 
adjoining residential property. Fencing, landscaping, or privacy glass may 
be used to provide screening and prevent a direct line of sight. 

7. All windows and doors that are less than 30 feet from a property line that 
is not a right-of-way line must either be (for windows) clerestory with the 
bottom of the glass at least six feet above the finished floor, or (for 
windows and for doors) utilize frosted or obscure glass. 

I. Landscape Requirements.  

1. Within the 4-foot or greater side setback and for a minimum depth of at 
least 4 feet along a back fence, landscaping shall be maintained that 
includes groundcover with automatic irrigation that still allows for fire-
access in the setback area. Paving of the entire rear yard setback area is 
prohibited.  

2. In addition to the maintenance of fence of at least five (5) feet in height 
between properties, specimen plantings or a trellis with vines shall be 
provided in the setback area  that provides landscaping and privacy 
screening of the ADU or JADU from windows or outdoor living areas of 
adjoining properties.  

J. Historical Protections. The following requirements apply to ADUs on or 
within 600 feet of real property that is listed in the California Register 
of Historic Resources:  

1. Accessory dwelling units may only be located within an existing structure 
or located with no direct line of sight to any portion of the ADU from a 
public right-of-way.  

2. The architectural treatment of an ADU to be constructed on a lot that has an 
identified historical resource listed on the federal, state, or local register of 
historic places must comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s objective 
Standards for Preservation, Rehabilitation, Restoration, or Reconstruction the 
Treatment of Historic Properties, as applicable. 

5.19.070 Deed Restriction. 

Prior to issuance of a building permit for an ADU or JADU, a deed restriction 
must be recorded against the title of the property in the County Recorder’s office 
and a copy filed with the City Planner. The deed restriction must run with the 
land and bind all future owners. The form of the deed restriction will be provided 
by the City and must provide that: 

1. The ADU or JADU may not be sold separately from the primary dwelling. 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 11 of 14 
 

2. The ADU or JADU is restricted to the approved size and to other 
attributes allowed by this section. 

3. The deed restriction runs with the land and may be enforced against 
future property owners. 

4. The deed restriction may be removed if the owner eliminates the ADU or 
JADU, as evidenced by, for example, removal of the kitchen facilities. To 
remove the deed restriction, an owner may make a written request of the 
Director, providing evidence that the ADU or JADU has in fact been 
eliminated. The City Planner may then determine whether the evidence 
supports the claim that the ADU or JADU has been eliminated. Appeal 
may be taken from the Director’s determination consistent with other 
provisions of this Code. If the ADU or JADU is not entirely physically 
removed but is only eliminated by virtue of having a necessary 
component of the ADU or JADU removed, the remaining structure and 
improvements must otherwise comply with applicable provisions of this 
Code. 

5. The deed restriction is enforceable by the City Planner or his or her 
designee for the benefit of the City. Failure of the property owner to 
comply with the deed restriction may result in legal action against the 
property owner, and the City is authorized to obtain any remedy available 
to it at law or equity, including, but not limited to, obtaining an injunction 
enjoining the use of the ADU or JADU in violation of the recorded 
restrictions or abatement of the illegal unit.   

5.19.080 Fees 

A. Impact Fees.  

1. No impact fee is required for an ADU that is less than 750 square feet in 
size. 

2. Any impact fee that is required for an ADU that is 750 square feet or 
larger in size must be charged proportionately in relation to the square 
footage of the primary dwelling unit. (E.g., the floor area of the primary 
dwelling, divided by the floor area of the ADU, times the typical fee 
amount charged for a new dwelling.) “Impact fee” here includes fees that 
are subject to the Mitigation Fee Act and fees under the Quimby Act; it 
does not include any connection fee or capacity charge for water or 
sewer service. 

B. Utility Fees. 

1. If an ADU or JADU is constructed with a new single-family home, a 
separate utility connection directly between the ADU or JADU and the 
utility and payment of the normal connection fee and capacity charge for 
a new dwelling are required. 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 12 of 14 
 

 
2. Except as described in subsection B.1 above, converted ADUs and JADUs 

on a single-family lot that are created under section 5.19.040, paragraph 
A.1, above are not required to have a new or separate utility connection 
directly between the ADU or JADU and the utility. Nor is a connection fee 
or capacity charge required. 

3. All ADUs not covered by paragraphs B.1 or B.2 of this section require a 
new, separate utility connection directly between the ADU and the utility. 
The connection is subject to a connection fee or capacity charge that is 
proportionate to the burden created by the ADU, based on either the 
floor area or the number of drainage-fixture units (DFU) values, as 
defined by the Uniform Plumbing Code, upon the water or sewer system. 
The fee or charge may not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this 
service. 

5.19.090 Nonconforming ADUs and Discretionary Approval 

Any proposed ADU or JADU that does not conform to the objective standards set forth in the 
other sections of this chapter may be allowed by the City with a Conditional Use Permit, in 
accordance with Section 5.030.400 through 5.030.430.  

[History: ORD. 770, 3/22/17; ORD. XX, xx/xx/20]  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 5. EXEMPT FROM CEQA. 

Under California Public Resources Code section 21080.17, the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”) does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a city or county implementing 
the provisions of section 65852.2 of the Government Code, which is California’s ADU law and 
which also regulates JADUs, as defined by section 65852.22. Therefore, the proposed ordinance 
is statutorily exempt from CEQA in that the proposed ordinance implements the State’s ADU law.  

In addition to being statutorily exempt from CEQA, the proposed ordinance is also categorically 
exempt from CEQA under the Class 3 exemption set forth in State CEQA Guidelines section 15303.  
The Class 3 exemption categorically exempts from CEQA, among other things, the construction 
and location of new, small structures and the conversion of existing small structures from one 
use to another.  Section 15303 specifically lists the construction of appurtenant accessory 
structures and garages as examples of activity that expressly falls within this exemption.  Here, 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 13 of 14 
 

the ordinance is categorically exempt under the Class 3 exemption because the ordinance 
regulates the conversion of existing structures into, and the new construction of, ADUs and 
JADUs, which are, by definition, structures that are accessory to a primary dwelling on the lot.  
Moreover, the City Council finds that none of the “exceptions” to the use of the Class 3 exemption, 
set forth in State CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2, apply here. Specifically, the City Council finds 
that the ordinance will: 

(1) Not result in the construction of ADUs within a particularly sensitive environment because 
these accessory structures will necessarily be built on a lot already developed with a primary 
dwelling; 

(2) Not result in a potentially significant cumulative impact because ADU’s and JADU’s will 
only be built on a percentage of lots already developed with a primary dwelling; 

(3) Not result in a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the 
environment due to unusual circumstances because all of Colma’s existing dwelling units are 
located within a developed urbanized area;  

(4)  Not result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic 
buildings, rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state 
scenic highway because the development of ADU’s will only be developed in areas where scenic 
resources do not exist;  

(5)  Not be located on a hazardous waste site included on any list compiled pursuant to § 
65962.5 of the Government Code because no property zoned for residential use is located on a 
hazardous waste site; or 

(6) Not result in a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource 
because historical resources are subject to a separate review and permitting system.  

 
ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the three 
(3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to take force 
and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 7. NOTICE OF EXEMPTION. 

The City Council hereby directs staff to prepare, execute and file with the San Mateo County Clerk 
a Notice of Exemption within five working days of first reading of this ordinance. 

 

 

 



25977.00110\32955884.2 
 

Ord. No. ___ Accessory Units 2019 Legislation Page 14 of 14 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 8. FILING. 

The City Clerk shall submit an adopted copy of this ordinance to the Department of Housing and 
Community Development within 60 days after adoption. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARTICLE 9. RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS. 

The documents and materials that constitute the record of proceedings on which this Ordinance 
and the above findings have been based are located at City Hall, Office of the City Clerk, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA 04014 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on May 27, 2020 and duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on __________, 2020 by the following vote: 
      
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro       
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 



Staff Report re Financial Projection Balancing Strategy  Page 1 of 5 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: May 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: Financial Projection Balancing Strategy 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF UNASSIGNED RESERVE AND REDUCING THE 
OPEB AND PENSION TRUST CONTRIBUTIONS IN FY 2019-20 AND FY 2020-21 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town, under the leadership of the City Council, acted responsibly in slowing the spread of 
COVID-19, beginning in March 2020, and acted honorably in providing key essential services to 
residents while keeping Town employees financially stable. However, COVID-19 and the Shelter 
in Place order has created a $2.88 million revenue shortfall in FY 2019-20 and an additional 
$1.79 million revenue shortfall in FY 2020-21. On May 13, 2020, the City Council provided 
feedback on cost cutting measures to reduce and preserve the Town’s reserve. It is through the 
many cost cutting measures discussed below that has reduced the operating deficit to $2.54 
million in FY 2019-20 and an additional $2.20 million in FY 2020-21. Without these cost cutting 
measures, the Town would deplete its $10.66 million of unassigned reserves. The use of 
unassigned reserves and the reduction of the trust contributions are part of the general fund 
projection, as well as a hiring freeze, minimal to no discretionary spending, and deferral of all 
capital purchases. The Town will continue to stay vigilant and prepare quarterly projections as 
to allow a faster response to the fiscal challenges created by the COVID-19 crisis.  

Item #7



Staff Report re Financial Projection Balancing Strategy  Page 2 of 5 

FISCAL IMPACT 

By approving the attached resolution, the City Council is authorizing the reduction in the Town’s 
General Fund unassigned reserve by $2.54 million in FY 2019-20 and by $2.20 million in FY 
2020-21.  The City Council will also reduce the PARS Trust contributions to be: 

 FY 2019-20 
(May and June) 

FY 2020-21 
(entire year) 

Pension Trust $ 202,874 $ 249,972 
OPEB Trust $ 134,114 $ 737,964 

 

BACKGROUND 

On May 13, 2020, the City Council held a study session to discuss the Town’s current financial 
situation. Based on the data received thru March 30, 2020, the Town is expecting a $2.88 
million revenue shortfall in FY 2019-20 and an additional revenue shortfall of $1.79 million in FY 
2020-21. The cause of the revenue shortfall is unexpected and is a result from business 
closures in response to the rapid spread of COVID-19 and an attempt to flatten the curve.  

While the economic impact of COVID-19 is widespread, State and Federal stimulus funds are 
currently favoring individuals, businesses, and larger organizations. As of May 13, 2020, the 
only local financial assistance available to Colma is the $3.0 trillion Local Coronavirus Relief 
Fund proposed by Congresswoman Jackie Speier. If passed in its current format, the Town of 
Colma will be allocated $0.7 million of the $3 trillion. The financial relief will offset about one 
month of revenue shortfall. Unless more resources are available, Colma must remain self-reliant 
in preserving and protecting the Town’s financial well-being.  

In reviewing the expenditure budget, Staff understood the intricate balance between reducing 
expenditures and providing the best public support through the COVID-19 crisis. Right now, 
Town residents and businesses rely on the Town for their safety and wellbeing. While 
preserving the Town’s financial health, the Town redeployed staff and resources to areas with 
more urgency and importance. This includes holding virtual recreation classes, delivering food 
and necessities to the high risk residents, keeping Town Staff financially whole for as long as 
possible, maintaining public safety responsiveness, and redirecting funding to critical capital 
needs. 

To address this revenue shortfall and preserve the reserve, Staff reviewed the expenditure 
budget and identified $1.30 million of budget savings in FY 2019-20 and another $2.13 million 
expenditure reductions in FY 2020-21, bringing the total operating deficit to $2.54 million in FY 
2019-20 and $2.20 million in FY 2020-21.  



Staff Report re Financial Projection Balancing Strategy  Page 3 of 5 

 

General Fund 
2019-20 
Budget 

2019-20 
Projection 

Over/(Under) 
Budget 

2020-21 
Projection 

Change from 
2019-20 

Incr/ (Decr)  
(in Million) [a] [b] [a]-[b] [c] [c]-[b] 

Revenues $ 17.74 $ 14.86 $ (2.88) $ 13.07 $ (1.79) 
Less: Expenditures 
& Transfers  (18.70)  (17.40)  1.30  (15.27)  2.13 

Operating Surplus / 
(Deficit) $ (0.96) $ (2.54) $ (1.58) $ (2.20) $ 0.34 

The cost cutting measures included significant reduction in discretionary and contingency 
spending and well as the following items.  

• Hiring freeze of all vacant positions until January 2021, 
including the Recreation Manager, Police Officer, Part time 
positions, and Chief of Police. However, it does include the 
cost for an Interim Police Chief.  

$ 221,000 

• Reduce contribution to OPEB and Pension Trust by half. $987,935 
• Suspend capital purchases and fleet allocation for one year – 

including deferring minor facility repair and maintenance. 
$300,000 

• Postpone all capital programs that have not started or can 
easily hold off and transfer the funds to grant-funded capital 
projects. The projects that will continue until completion are 
Mission Road Improvement, El Camino Bicycle and Pedestrian, 
General Plan Update, Climate Action Plan Update, Radio 
Update at Police Station, and purchase and integration of the 
Record Management System. 

$245,000 

• Suspend transfer of $500,000 from General Fund to Capital 
Fund.  

$500,000 

• Continued General Fund support of to the COPS Grant 
operation, but Staff will present options to reduce or eliminate 
General Fund subsidy.  

$40,000 

• Suspend water intensive program, which reduces the Town’s 
transfer to support sewer operation from $130,000 to 
$40,000. 

$40,000 

• Cancel the Town Picnic in September 2020. $19,000 
• Cancel the Town Holiday party in December 2020. $35,000 
• Limit the Kumon enrollment to one class per child and request 

Kumon to transfer group discount to Colma residents. Current 
cost is $70,000 per year.  

Unknown 

• Maintain City Council grants at same level as FY 19-20 and 
evaluate the budget while evaluating the grant.  

$95,000 

• Continue funding economic development program (formally, 
Chamber of Commerce). 

$25,000 



Staff Report re Financial Projection Balancing Strategy  Page 4 of 5 

• Research into alternatives to reduce the Town’s earthquake 
insurance through increase in deductibles or insuring higher-
risk buildings only. 

Unknown 

These cost cutting measures are insufficient to offset the revenue shortfall resulting from 
business closures during the Shelter in Place order. The use of reserves is needed to bridge the 
operating deficit.  

ANALYSIS 

From many years of strong fiscal leadership of the City Council, the Town has a reserve of 
$24.86 million as of March 31, 2020, with $10.66 million in unassigned. The unassigned reserve 
represents about half of the year’s operation.  

To address the operating deficit of $2.54 million in FY 2019-20 and $2.20 million in FY 2020-21, 
Staff needs City Council authorization to reduce the pension and OPEB trust contributions and 
to use unassigned reserves. The Town makes monthly contribution to the OPEB Trust and an 
annual contribution to the Pension Trust. The annual contributions are based on the 
corresponding actuarial reports. The Town may elect to change its contribution amount, but a 
formal approval is preferred. The reduced May and June contribution to OPEB and Pension 
Trusts will equal $134,114 and $202,874, respectively. The amounts for FY 2020-21 will be 
$737,964 and $249,972, respectively.  

The amount of unassigned reserves needed for FY 2019-20 ($2,541,946) and FY 2020-21 
($2,220,682) represents the maximum reserve needed from now until June 30, 2021. Staff is 
committed to using as little as possible. Staff will also begin research on the following cost 
cutting measures to prepare for the aftermath of the current COVID-19 crisis. These additional 
cost cutting measures may take up to a year to implement and may require some spending. 

 Spending Annual Savings 
• Contract to complete sewer fee study to make 

sewer enterprise a self-funding operation Fees 
collected will be restricted for sewer operations 
and sewer capital improvements. 

$50,000  $130,000 plus 
capital 

• Halt OPEB and Pension Trust contribution for 
the entire year 

 $987,935 

• Halt OPEB and Pension Trust contribution but 
rather pay the amount to CalPERS directly to 
offset the increase in pension liability as a result 
of the financial crisis brought on by COVID-19 

$1,975,871 Further analysis 
is needed on the 

savings 

• 5% Furlough ~ 2 hours less pay a week  $75,000 
• Delay or eliminate the scheduled 2% COLA in 

July 2020 and January 2021 
 $195,000 

• Layoff three employees ~ $120,000/employee  $360,000 
• Continue project to annex Sterling Park lighting 

district into the Town’s operation 
$50,000 Further analysis 

is required 



Staff Report re Financial Projection Balancing Strategy  Page 5 of 5 

 Spending Annual Savings 
• Engage with Housing Investment Project or 

Housing Endowment and Regional Trust for the 
potential sale of 1365 Mission Road 

$20,000 Up to $800,000 

• Collaborate with San Mateo County to update 
the Countywide Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(LHMP). Updating of LHMP is required to be 
eligible for State and Federal grants. 

$10,000  

• Outsource business license processing $10,000 
Annual 

Save on staff 
time and postage 

• Continue the search for technology to 
streamline and increase transparency and 
promote public engagement 

Unknown Unknown 

 

Reasons For the Recommended Action/Findings  

In accordance with Colma Administrative Code 4.01.180 (b), Staff is seeking City Council 
approval to use unassigned reserves to offset the operating deficit created by the COVID-19 
crisis. The use of unassigned reserves will allow the Town to continue to operate and provide 
essential services to its businesses and residents during this crisis.  

The Town is requesting City Council authorization to alter the pension and OPEB trusts 
contribution for FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21. This action allows staff to reduce payment to 
PARS trust and to redeploy to essential service needs.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council performed responsibly through careful consideration of all cost cutting 
measures discussed in length during the May 13, 2020 Financial Projection Study Session. The 
authorization to use unassigned reserves and to reduce the trust contributions shows the City 
Council flexibility when facing unforeseen circumstances, an attribute of Vision. 
 
CONCLUSION 

COVID-19 presented an unprecedented challenge physically, emotionally, and financially. It is 
through the City Council’s commitment to Staff and to the public that employees remain 
financial secure and the public is supported through the innovative programs created by Town 
Staff. The authorization to use unassigned reserves to offset the operating deficit and to reduce 
trusts contributions allows the Town to continue to support the public while preserving the 
Town’s healthy reserve balance. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res 2020-__, Financial Projection Balancing Strategy for FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF UNASSIGNED RESERVE AND REDUCING THE 
OPEB AND PENSION TRUST CONTRIBUTIONS IN FY 2019-20 AND FY 2020-21 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows. 

1. Background

(a) Novel coronavirus (COVID-19) spread quickly in San Mateo County beginning March 2, 
2020;  

(b) In response to the quick spread of COVID-19, San Mateo County and the State of 
California issued a “Shelter in Place” (SIP) order, effective March 16, resulting in all non-essential 
businesses to close immediately; 

(c) The SIP order created a significant revenue shortfall for the Town, with an estimate of 
$2.88 million in FY 2019-20 and an additional $1.79 million in FY 2020-21; 

(d) On March 13, 2020, the Town held a study session to discuss the fiscal impact of COVID-
19 and the cost cutting measures to be included to reduce the operating deficit; 

(e) The cost cutting measures included reducing discretionary spending, halting recruitment 
of all vacant positions, suspending capital and fleet purchases and annual transfer to capital 
improvement fund, postponing capital projects where possible, cancelling Town Picnic and 
Holiday Party, and reducing contribution to PARS Trusts for pension and OPEB; and  

(f) The cost cutting measures are insufficient to offset the revenue shortfall requiring the use 
of reserves in FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21, in the amount of $2.54 million and $2.20 million 
respectively. 

2. Findings and Order.

(a) Authorization for the use of reserves. Colma Administrative Code 4.01.180 (b) requires 
City Council approval for use of reserves above $50,000. The maximum amount of resreves 
needed for FY 2019-20 is $2.54 million and for FY 2020-21 is $2.20 million.  

(b) Authorization to reduce PARS trusts contributions. City Council approval is required by 
PARS Trusts for alteration to OPEB and pension contribution. The amounts are as followed: 

FY 2019-20 
(May and June) 

FY 2020-21 
(entire year) 

Pension Trust $ 202,874 $ 249,972 
OPEB Trust $ 134,114 $ 737,964 

Attachment A



Res 2020-__, Financial Projection Balancing Strategy for FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on May 27, 2020, by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

John Irish Goodwin, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Helen Fisicaro      
Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      John Irish Goodwin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 
 
  
 

 


	05.27.20 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 05.13.20
	3. Second Reading - Gambling Establishments
	4. Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement
	A. Resolution - Amendment to Animal Control Services Agreement (May 2020)
	B. Amended Agreement
	C. Original Agreement

	5. LEAP Planning Grant Program Funds
	A. Resolution - LEAP Planning Grant

	6. ADU Ordinance
	A. ADU Ordinance

	7. Financial Projection Balancing Strategy
	A. Resolution


